ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 22, 2002
1:13 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Beth Kerttul a

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Joe G een
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Lesil MQiire

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 286

"An Act allowing a person to hold nore than one comerci al
fishing entry permt for a fishery; relating to the power of the
Board of Fisheries to establish fishing periods and areas for
subgroups of comercial fishing permts and commercial fishing
permt holders and to establish [imts on the amount of fishing
gear that my be used by certain commercial fishing permt
hol ders; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 286( RES) OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 392
"An Act relating to the use and appropriation of water."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 421
"An Act relating to water use and appropriation.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 286
SHORT TI TLE: FI SHI NG PERM TS/ ASSOCI ATl ONS/ ASSESSMVENTS

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 22, 2002



SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
01/ 14/ 02 1949
01/ 14/ 02 1949

N

01/ 14/ 02 1949
01/ 30/ 02 2100
02/ 04/ 02
02/ 04/ 02
02/ 04/ 02
02/ 11/ 02
02/ 11/ 02

NN AN AN AN NN

02/ 11/ 02
02/ 13/ 02 2229
02/ 13/ 02 2229

NN N

02/ 13/ 02 2229

~

02/ 13/ 02 2229
02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02
02/ 13/ 02
02/ 22/ 02

TIITITITLE £ T2 T I

NN AN AN NN

BILL: HB 392

SHORT TI TLE: WATER RI GHTS ANMENDMENTS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HARRI S

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page

02/ 08/ 02 2182 (H)
02/ 08/ 02 2182 (H)
02/ 08/ 02 2182 (H)
02/ 20/ 02 (H)
02/ 20/ 02 (H)
02/ 22/ 02 (H)

W TNESS REG STER

GORDY W LLI AMS, Legislative Liaison

O fice of the Comm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

P. O. Box 25526
Juneau, Al aska 99802-5526

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 02
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
FSH, RES
COSPONSOR( S) : FATE
FSH AT 3: 30 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( FSH)
FSH AT 3: 30 PM CAPI TOL 124
Moved CSHB 286( FSH) CQut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( FSH)
FSH RPT CS(FSH) NT 4DP 3NR
DP: DYSQON, SCALZI, W LSON,
STEVENS;
NR: COGHI LL, KERTTULA,
KAPSNER
FN1: ZERQ(DFQ
RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( RES)
M NUTE( RES)
RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
RES
REFERRED TO RESQURCES
RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Schedul ed But Not Heard
RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

February 22, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on in favor of HB 286 on behal f of
t he departnent but asked for sone changes.

SUE ASPELUND

Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU)

P. 0. Box 939

Cordova, Al aska 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 286 but called
for clarification on sone of the |anguage.

THOM W SCHER

United Sal non Associ ation

P. 0. Box 202

Kodi ak, Al aska 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 286.

ALAN REEVES

P. O Box 741

W angel |, Al aska 99929

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 286 that he would like to
see ot her gear types included in the |egislation.

JIM SM TH, Fi sherman

P. 0. Box 2025

W angel |, Al aska 99929

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 286 that different gear
types and fisheries should not be viewed as the sane.

DAVI D BEDFORD, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Seiners Association

526 Main Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 286; would I|ike
the associations to represent all permt holders wthin a
fishery, and his group would support any change that would bring
about that end.

GERALD (JERRY) M:CUNE, Lobbyi st

for United Fishernen of Al aska (UFA)

211 4th Street, Suite 110

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1172

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the UFA on HB 286.

KATHY HANSEN, Executive D rector

Sout heast Al aska Fisherman's Alliance
9369 North Dougl as H ghway

Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 22, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 286.

SCOIT McALLI STER, Al askan Sal non Fi shernman

316 Distin Avenue

Juneau, Al aska 99801

(No address provided)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an Al askan sal non fi shernan
in support of HB 286.

PETE FELLMAN, St aff

to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 513

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke on behal f of the sponsor of HB 392.

PH L KASPAR

P.O Box 177

Delta Junction, Alaska 99737

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 392.

JAN KONI GSBERG

Trout Unlimted

1399 West 34th, Suite 205

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Al aska Public
Water Coalition in opposition to HB 392; opposes any anendnents
to the Alaska Water Use Act that would establish specific
preferences anong different water users.

RUSS BOWDRE

P. O. Box 1048

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 392.

ART CGRI SWOLD

HC 60 Box 4493

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 392.

BOB LCEFFLER, Director

Di vision of Mning, Land and Water

Departnent of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1070

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3579

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 392; indicated the bill had
significant problens.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 22, 2002



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-9, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO-CHAIR DREW SCALZI called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:13 p.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Kapsner, Kerttula, Fate,
St evens, Masek, and Scal zi .

HB 286- OANERSHI P OF MORE THAN ONE FI SHERY PERM T

Number 0125

CO CHAI R SCALZI announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 286, "An Act allowing a person to hold nore
than one commercial fishing entry permt for a fishery; relating
to the power of the Board of Fisheries to establish fishing
periods and areas for subgroups of commercial fishing permts
and commercial fishing permt holders and to establish [imts on
the amount of fishing gear that may be wused by certain
commer ci al fishing permt hol der s; and providing for an
effective date.”

[Before the committee was CSHB 286(FSH); in packets was a
proposed comm ttee substitute (CS), Version T.]

CO CHAIR SCALZI, sponsor of HB 286, addressed changes in the

[Version T] that he characterized as snmall and innocuous. He
said the change on page 1, line 8, replaces "the comm ssioner
shall"™ wth "the conmm ssioner may". On page 7, lines 20-21 are

changed to "during each nonth to the department by the |ast day
of the next nonth", consistent with the Al aska Seafood Marketing

Institute (ASM) Sal non Enhancenent Tax. And page 8, line 9,
has a change from"shall" to "may".
Number 0265

CO CHAI R MASEK asked why "shall" was changed to "may".

CO CHAIR SCALZI said he should let the departnent speak to that
i ssue, but added, "The inference of 'shall assist in and
encourage the formation of qualified salnon fishery associations
for the purpose of pronoting the consolidation' ... may not be
in the best interest of any group in one particular area to have
that mandated on them"™ He said the departnment may not want the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 22, 2002



word "shall" used in this case. He said the bill would not be
br oad- based across all salnon fisheries, but may be specific to
different areas. The change from "shall"”™ to "may" gives the
departnent and different fishing areas sone | atitude.

CO CHAI R MASEK asked to hear from the departnent on the matter.
She al so inquired about the changes on page 7, |ines 20-21.

Nunber 0412

GORDY W LLI AMS, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, explained that the

change from "shall" to "may" is nore appropriate. He said the
departnment wouldn't want to have to force people into doing
sonething they didn't want to do by using "shall". This gives

peopl e the option of either seeking the departnent's assistance
i n devel opi ng an operating plan or not.

Number 0505

COCHAIR MASEK asked M. Wllians if it wuld cost the
departnment any funding to assist in those areas.

MR. WLLIAVS replied that the departnment does a |lot of outreach
already, and that he didn't foresee this plan-devel opnent
assi stance creating a large fiscal strain.

Number 0572

CO CHAIR MASEK noved to adopt the proposed CS, version 22-
LS1099\T, Uernohle, 2/20/02, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version T was before the commttee.

CO CHAIR SCALZI referred to page 8, followng line 2, and said
the Departnment of Revenue had concerns about the collection of
fees; the departnent felt it would help in ensuring the
enforcenment of AS 43.05 and AS 43.10.

Number 0714

CO-CHAIR SCALZI offered Amendnent 1, 22-LS1099\T.1, Uternohle,
2/ 20/ 02, which read:

Page 8, following line 2:
Insert a new subsection to read:
"(e) The provisions of AS 43.05 and AS 43.10
apply for the enforcement and collection of a sal non

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 22, 2002



fishery assessnent | evied under AS 43.76.220 -
43.76.280."

He explained that it was for the purposes of better enforcenent
of collection.

Nunmber 0758

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if it would be better to replace
"for" with "to" on line 3 of the aforenenti oned amendnent.

CO CHAIR SCALZI said Representative Kerttula is the commttee's
resident attorney and deferred to her judgnment on the matter,
saying he thought it was fine. He said he didn't think the
change was so great as to require substantiation by the
Depart ment of Revenue.

Nunmber 0857

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked if there were any objections to Amendnent
1 [including Representative Kerttula' s suggested anendnent to

the amendnent]. There being no objection, Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

Number 0916

MR. WLLIAMS asked for clarification of Section 1, page 2, line
1 [Version T], which read in part, "(2) represents interimuse
permt and entry permt holders who participate in the sal non
fishery". He said the departnent had had di scussions about the

word "participate", and that within sonme fisheries, sone permt
hol ders don't fish their permts but renew them so that they are

still wvalid. He suggested it mght be better for the bill to
say, "represents interim use and entry permt holders in the
salnon fishery", thereby deleting "who participate" from the
| anguage.

Number 1056

CO CHAI R SCALZI responded that it doesn't exclude permt hol ders
who are not actively fishing and that he doesn't see a problem
with the | anguage as it is.

Nunmber 1126

SUE  ASPELUND, Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU),
testified via teleconference. She said CDFU had no problemw th

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 22, 2002



anending the |anguage from "shall" to "may", but would Iike
clarification on the "participant” 1issue raised by Gordy
WIIlians. She said CDFU supports the legislation and
characterized it as a good "tool in the box" to get gear out of
the water. She asked the conmttee to support the bill.

Nunber 1234

THOM W SCHER, Uni ted Sal nron  Associ ati on, testified via
t el econf erence. He said his association supports the bill and
agrees with the anmendnent regarding ["shall"™ to "may"], which
preserves regional self-determ nation. He said the United
Sal nron Association also |likes that there can only be one
additional permt held per area by a permt holder. He said the

ability to form associations and pursue fleet reduction are also
pl easing to the United Sal non Associ ati on.

Nunmber 1353

ALAN REEVES testified via tel econference. He said he wanted to
"pi ggyback"” other fisheries onto the bill. He raised the
scenario of fishernmen being paid not to fish their permts in
other districts and going to other districts and crowding them
out . He said the conmttee would probably be hearing from the
ot her gear groups in the follow ng year.

CO CHAIR SCALZI expressed his concurrence with many of M.
Reeves' thoughts but wunderlined the difficulty of getting any
bill passed in the present year. He said other gear types
should be included, perhaps in the following year if the bill
goes t hrough.

Nunber 1471
JIM SM TH, Fisherman, testified via teleconference. He
disagreed with M. Reeves that all other gear groups and

fisheries should "be | ooked at wwth the sane eye."
Number 1520

DAVI D BEDFORD, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Seiners
Associ ation, testified before the conmttee. He said the bill
is a good start to getting the salnon industry back to health,
and that the anendnents have good justifications. He said he
would like to see the associations represent all of the permt
hol ders within a fishery and that his group would support any
change whi ch woul d bring about that end.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 22, 2002



Number 1620

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK remarked that the bill is fornmed well and
t hanked the associations for helping to craft legislation to
keep the state's salnon fisheries a viable part of the econony.

Nunmber 1676

GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyist for United Fishernmen of Al aska
(UFA), testified before the conmttee. He said the UFA supports
the bill and its anendnents. He said over the sumer the UFA
would try to survey all of the other fisheries - 86 fisheries in
the state, 26 of those regarding sal non. He said if the other
fisheries cone to a conclusion, the UFA wll support an
anendnent in the followng year to include them The reason
that salnon fisheries were the only ones specified in the bill
is "that was all we ever tal ked about."

Nunber 1756

KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Fisherman's
Al liance, testified before the conmttee in support of HB 286,
sayi ng her organization would like to see the bill extended into
statewi de fisheries because salnon fisheries have a "downstream
effect on other fisheries." The other fisheries need tools to
deal with issues in their fisheries also. She gave the exanple
of the pot-shrinp fishery in Southeast as one |ooking for ways
to reduce permts in its fishery. She said it wouldn't be good
to see other fisheries harmed because they weren't allowed to
deal with their problens, while salnon fisheries were allowed to
do so.

Nunber 1842

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked Ms. Hansen what she thought of the
proposal to work on including other fisheries during the sumrer.

MS. HANSEN characterized the bill as well witten and voluntary.
She said a fleet would not join in unless that was the wll of
its majority. She said that to not give the fisheries "a tool"
i s hanpering them

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked Ms. Hansen if she is supportive of
the bill, evenif it is not "statew de."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 22, 2002



M5. HANSEN answered in the affirmative. She said she preferred
that it be debated once, instead of going through the whole

process again. She said fishermen around the state are paying
attention to the bill already.

Nunber 1973

SCOTT MALLI STER, Al askan Sal non Fi sherman, testified before the
conm ttee. He said 15 years prior, he could see the sal non-
marketing "train weck” comng with the advent of farned sal non.
He called the bill tinmely and constructive.

Nunber 2054

MR WLLIAVS offered the ADF&G s and the admnistration's
support of the bill. He said bills like this give the industry
tools to pick and choose ways to help itself. Referring to
Section 1, he said he wanted to continue to work with sone of
the bill's language in that section. He pointed out that the
bill allows for nore than one associ ati on.

CO CHAIR SCALZI said the language was left as it is because
"mul ti-associations" can be formed in fisheries presently,
W thout the bill. He added, "The l|anguage as it is actually
reflects what is going on today."

Number 2154

MR. WLLIAMS referred to page 3, line 4, which read in part,
"(1) there exists in the admnistrative area in which the
fishery occurs an association". He said he wasn't certain of
the intent of that portion or what "admnistrative area" neant
in the bill. He suggested perhaps it should read, "there exists
for the fishery an association".

Number 2205

CO CHAIR SCALZI explained that the admnistrative area is the
area of the permtted use, in which there may be severa
overlapping limted entry uses. For exanple, there may be

gillnet, seine, and setnet uses in the sane area; it is specific
to that admnistrative area of the fishery, which is why that
| anguage is used. He indicated the admnistrative area is nore
specific than a limted entry area.

MR. WLLIAVS said he would continue to | ook at that, although it
seens now that Southeast Alaska is an adm nistrative area. He

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 22, 2002



said if one fishery had an association, then there is a
qgqual ified association existing in the area; however, it may not
be the one that wants to inpose the tax. He indicated the words
could be clarified but the intent was understandabl e.

Nunber 2287

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noted that there had been discussion on the
participation in the fishery. He suggested it was fine in its
current form For exanple, there is a salnon fishery on the
Yukon River; although there hasn't been commercial fishing on

that river for two years, they still participate. He said HB
286 doesn't specify the geographic location of that salnon
fishery; t hus it woul d [ be included] if there were
qualifications for these associations in that fishery. He
suggested that things |imting that comrercial fishery can
happen to heighten participation. Therefore, he said he
woul dn't spend much tinme on that issue. Representative Fate

related his belief that HB 286 may even help the "brown water"”
fishery.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA remarked that she wasn't sure that this
shoul dn't be opened up to other fisheries, but indicated she was
willing to [pass HB 286], knowing that UFA and others wll work
on bringing others in. However, she noted that she shared M.
Hansen's concerns regardi ng the inpact on other fisheries.

CO- CHAIR  SCALZI concurred with Representative Kerttula's
coment s. He noted that this process is going to take tine.
There won't be an inmediate consolidation, and perhaps the other
fisheries can be brought in by the tinme the downstream inpacts
are determ ned.

Nunber 2444

CO CHAIR MASEK noved to report HB 286 [version 22-LS1099\T,
Ut ernmohl e, 2/20/02, as anended] out of commttee wth individua
recomnmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 286(RES) was reported from the House
Resources Standing Committee.

[ Co-Chair Scal zi turned the gavel over to Co-Chair Masek.]

HB 392- WATER RI GHTS AMENDMENTS

Nunber 2484

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 22, 2002



CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 392, "An Act relating to the wuse and
appropriation of water."

Nunmber 2528

PETE FELLMAN, Staff to Representative John Harris, Alaska State
Legislature, presented HB 392 on behalf of Representative
Harris, sponsor. He noted that previous |egislation, HB 185 and
SB 139, had generated a lot of discussion in D stricts 35 and
36; there were many questions and thoughts from | andowners,
farmers, small rural villages, and water users. He said HB 392
is an effort to address sonme of those questions; it will also
help determne how the Division of Mning, Land and Water is
going to serve Al askans' needs. For exanple, HB 392 attenpts to
address questions such as why there is an annual fee charged
when there is no change in the water permt; he said [the annual
fee] seens to be a way to generate noney or create jobs.

MR. FELLMAN nentioned [that the bill] creates a priority second
to donestic [water] use for agriculture. He said agriculture is
the foundation of all economes, w thout which there is no food.
Referring to the terrorist attacks of Septenmber 11, 2001, he
suggested Alaska would have three days' worth of food [if
shi pping ceased]. He remarked that giving a water preference to
farmers is simlar to an insurance policy.

Nunber 2726

MR. FELLMAN said farners bear the expense of creating the system
to extract water. Some changes nade |ast year allowed farners
to use water but provided no guarantees of [long-term water
use] . He talked about farnmers acquiring loans for irrigation
systens and the difficulties of not having a secure source of
wat er . He indicated the bill is a way to open discussion and

provide [security for] farmers making the investnment in Al aska.
He discussed nmaking it easier to renew tenporary water permts.
He gave an exanple of a farnmer who had applied for a tenporary

water permt in My but wasn't issued a permt until October;
consequently, he was unable to irrigate [because he m ssed the
deadl i ne] . He nentioned that if an application is filed and

there is no response from the departnment in 30 days, then the
applicant would have the right to use the water.

Nunber 2816

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 22, 2002



MR. FELLMAN noted that the definition of "significant anmount of
water” is left to the departnent to detern ne. He said
irrigation requires a significant anount of water for 30 days;
however, on an annual basis this would anbunt to | ess water than
woul d be used if water were used on a daily basis. He renarked
that he thought there should be sone clarification of what
"significant use" is. He said "our" effort was a good one - a
mllion gallons a day for 100 consecutive days. To irrigate 40
acres would require about 87,000 gallons of water per acre in a
30-day period; this would amount to an annual use of just over 3
mllion gallons of water, he said. He nentioned that wusing
5,000 gallons a day would amount to 2 mllion gallons of water
annually. Although the water use is significant for 30 days, it
is conparable to other uses over the long term

Nunmber 2867

COCHAIR MASEK referred to Section 4 [page 3], proposed
subsection (j). She asked about the current process.

MR. FELLMAN indicated he thought it was currently in statute.
He said the [subsection] was added so the [permts] could be
reauthorized easily at the end of a certain period.

CO CHAIR MASEK asked if [reauthorization] would require going
t hrough the provisions again.

MR. FELLMAN said not if all of the circunstances were still
rel evant to the application.

Number 2920
REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked how [HB 392] would affect water usage

in the mning industry. He said there are two types of mning
that both require |l arge anmounts of water.

MR. FELLMAN said he thought m ning used pass-through water. | f
it is not used, then it doesn't go anywhere; it's used and
di verted. He indicated a farnmer would have priority over a

mner with regard to water rights if there were a lack of water.
He indicated he didn't think it was very likely to have farm ng
and mining in the same area, however.

Number 2963

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he did [know of areas likely to have
both farmng and mning in close proximty]. He said strict

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 22, 2002



state and federal |aws regulate the usage of water in the mning
i ndustry; he indicated those |aws nay counter provisions in the
bill. Not all water used in mning is pass-through water, he
said. A certain percentage doesn't go back into the stream the
water put back into the source is usually as clean or cleaner
than the water taken out, he offered. He nmentioned that there
m ght be problens related to inpoundi ng dans.

TAPE 02-9, SIDE B
Number 2990

REPRESENTATI VE FATE indicated the bill mght curtail the anount
of water that mners can use. M ners do get water pernts, he
remar ked. He reiterated his question about whether [the bill]
woul d cause a conflict.

Nunmber 2976

MR. FELLMAN indicated he would be willing to work to bring the
mning industry, the oil industry, and agriculture underneath
the sane "unbrella.” He said he thought devel opnent of natura
resources and use of water were primary to the state's incone
and future. M. Fellman told Representative Fate he would be
willing to nmeet with his staff to discuss the |anguage and neke

i nprovenents.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE indicated inproving the |anguage would help
resolve any conflict the bill mght have wth the mning
i ndustry.

MR. FELLMAN agr eed.

Nunber 2942

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noted a possible conflict because her
father is a farner.

Number 2901

PH L KASPARI testified via teleconference. He told the
commttee that he is a local producer in Delta Junction. He
said he appreciates the way the bill was witten with the
farmer's interests in mnd. Farmers do bear sonme trenendous
costs in gearing up for their operation. Farmng is a |ong-

range investnent, and not having any security regarding the
ability to wuse water from year to year nakes decisions
difficult, he concl uded.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 22, 2002



Number 2844

JAN KONl GSBERG, Trout Unlimted, testified via tel econference on
behalf of the Alaska Public Water Coalition. He said the
coalition is concerned about the executive actions, |egislative,
and regulatory initiatives affecting Al aska's water resources
that would further special interests at the expense of the
public interest. In terms of HB 392, he said the coalition
woul d oppose any anendnents to the [Alaska] Water Use Act that
woul d establish specific preferences anong different water
users. He referred to Article VIII, Section 13, of the Al aska
constitution, which he said establishes public supply as the
only preferred use, subject to the reservation of water for fish
and wildlife; granting a preferred-use status for any other use
requires just conpensation under Article XVlI, Section 13.

MR. KON GSBERG said HB 392 is a bad bill; Sections 1 and 4, when
read together, would decrease funding for water nanagenent but e
allow for default approvals of tenporary water use permts. He
said those tenporary water use permts would now be good for ten
years. He remarked that the coalition supports tenporary water
use permts for truly tenporary water uses not to exceed a year;
the only protection that any water user gets for the long term
woul d require pernanence. He nentioned financial and water
rights.

MR. KONl GSBERG indicated he didn't understand how a tenporary
water use permt would increase the viability of an industrial
application in terns of going to financial funding sources.
Furthernore, Section 5 defines "significant anmount of water" in

a way that excludes alnobst all ice-road permts and tenporary
uses of water, thereby renoving the permts from any kind of
scrutiny at all. He nentioned "weak scrutiny” and anmendi ng [ HB]
185. He said ice road construction wusually stretches from
Novenber to early April; the "100 days in the cal endar year"
requi renent neans that the days between Novenber and Decenber
will not be added to the days from January to April. He

suggested this is an absurd way to cal cul ate significant anmounts
of waters. Additionally, anmounts smaller than 1 mllion gallons
of water a day for 100 days could still be a vast anmount of
wat er . Furthernore, the <coalition believes it should be
revi ewed, he told nenbers.

Nunber 2673

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 22, 2002



RUSS BOWDRE testified via teleconference. He told the commttee
he was a farner and a rancher, and thought [HB 392] was an

excellent bill. He said the bill [helps] to secure [farners']
needs for water in the future. He indicated he thought the
creators of the bill had taken everybody's needs into

consideration. He indicated he was in support of HB 392.
Nunber 2627

ART GRISWOLD testified via teleconference. He told the
commttee he was involved in agriculture and had been involved
in mning in the past. He said he thought [HB 392] was a great
bill. He said agriculture is [necessary]. In addition, nobney
has been going outside of Alaska to buy food for years, when
food could be produced in Al aska. Agriculture demands water, he
poi nted out. He said the situation is [intolerable] because
farmng in Alaska is a tight-budget [business]. Protections
need to be developed if Alaska is ever going to becone an
i ndependent state as far as agriculture, and so that [Al aska]
has the safety of producing its own food. He said he disagreed
with Representative Fate because gold isn't a nonrenewable
resource, whereas agriculture is.

Number 2550

BOB LCEFFLER, Director, Dvision of Mning, Land and Wter,
Depar t ment of Nat ur al Resour ces (DNR) , testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He told the commttee that he thought the bil
had significant problens. He said would explain how each

section would affect the [water rights and tenporary water use]
program He referred to Section 1, which he said elimnates
DNR s adm nistrative service fee. He explained that DNR woul d
rather not bill people, but that [section] would [result in] a
cost of approximately $130,000 in general funds to naintain the
program

VR. LOEFFLER noted that Section 2 gives preference for
agricultural use, which he said would have no effect nobst of the
time; however, it wuld have an effect when there isn't
sufficient water for agricultural use. He said if there are a
nunber of wunadjudicated applications, then preference would be

given to agriculture first. He said DNR opposes a preference to
specific wuses; noreover, he said he didn't believe it was
justified or good public policy. Agriculture has not had a
problem with having water rights denied, he suggested. He

mentioned that there is not a record of denied water rights and
there is not a problem that [HB 392] would be needed as a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 22, 2002



solution for, although it could create a problem He nentioned
situations that involve single-famly dwellings, or an existing
community and a |lot of wunadjudicated water rights filed, or a
backl og, for exanple.

Nunber 2454

MR. LCEFFLER referred to Section 3 and said he didn't think
allowing tenporary water wuse permts to be renewed for an
additional five years was justified. Tenporary water use
permts should be for things that are tenporary, he renarked.
He indicated that public comment has suggested there would be a
potential for abuse, and if there is facility that is expected
to go on for nore than five years, then it should get a water
right. He indicated he agreed wth public coment. He
mentioned that in the event that a tenporary water right permt
needs to be renewed and conditions haven't changed, there would
not be a problem in obtaining a second permt. He reiterated
that in general, he didn't see a need to renew tenporary water
use permts.

MR. LOEFFLER specified that Sections 1 and 5 are problematic
because tenporary water use permts would be issued if DNR does

not act to deny the permt in 30 days. For exanple, in an
unusual case where an ACWP [ Al aska Coastal Mnagenent Program
review is required, the review would take nore than 30 days. In

the instance that the ACVMP review is required, despite what DNR
does or what the application is, the [permt] would be
automatically issued, he said. Simlarly, DNR does occasionally
issue public notice for tenporary water wuse applications, in
which case it would take nore than 30 days.

Number 2381

MR. LCEFFLER said [HB 392] would elimnate DNR s ability to give
public notice when it is justified. |In general, even though DNR
does have a backlog regarding tenporary water rights, the
departnment is very good at getting tenporary water use permts
out when an applicant needs it. He said he didn't think that

the facts justify Section 4. In addition, Section 5 is very
problematic; it defines a significant anount of water to be a
mllion gallons for 100 consecutive days; however, this would
essentially elimnate the need for anyone to get a permt
anywher e. He suggested that alnobst all wuses throughout the
state would be able to use a mllion gallons for less than 100
consecutive days. M. Loeffler gave an exanple of how the

"significant anount of water"” provision could be subject to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 22, 2002



abuse. He said he could think of alnbst no use in the entire
state that would require a water right or tenporary water use
permt. This section would elimnate the protection that the
review process has for Alaska's fisheries and wldlife

furthernore, prior appropriators no longer would have the
protection of the program he said.

NUMBER 2302

MR. LCEFFLER suggested the best protection for farmers and
others [involved in agriculture] is a water-nmanagenent program
that functions. As a result of the work put together |ast year

and the funding work - especially the fee mechanism - DNR has
commtted, by the end of the fiscal year, that all typical new
water rights will be processed within 60 days and that a typica

water use permt wll be processed within 20 days - a level of
service that gives agriculture and other industries the surety
they require. Getting to that point wll solve the problens
people have identified and will provide what Al askan's need,;
however, this bill will not do so, he concl uded.

Number 2203

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked M. Loeffler if discontinuing annua
record mai nt enance coul d save any noney.

MR. LOEFFLER said it takes tinme for DNR to put out the fee and
answer questions and conplaints; [discontinuing annual record
mai nt enance] would result in a savings of $5,000 to $6, 000.

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked him if he neant $5,000 to $6,000 [in
savi ngs] versus $130, 000 in revenue.

MR. LCEFFLER sai d yes.
Number 2162
CO-CHAIR SCALZI referred to Section 2. He asked M. Loeffler

what other preference [agriculture] would have, besides the one
over the mning industry.

MR. LCEFFLER said everything. Under this bill, agriculture
woul d have preference over the follow ng uses: resi denti al
[this was |ater corrected by reference to Section 2], seafood
processing, "hydro," oil, gas, lunber, forestry, in-stream flow,

road construction, and so forth, he renarked.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 22, 2002



CO CHAIR SCALZI nentioned |ast year's request from DNR for an
addi tional $400,000 to address the backlog for water rights. He
asked M. Loeffler if DNR had received that nmoney and if the
program has been accel erated for the | ogbook renewal .

MR. LCEFFLER said last year DNR received $300,000 nore in
general funds. Over the next two years, DNR will receive |ess
in general funds as it raises nore noney in fees, he explained.
This year, DNR s budget proposes a decrenent of $84,000; next
year will be a simlar amount. He said DNR will be raising that
much nmore in fees; the result will be that DNR will be at the
service |levels [previously nentioned].

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked M. Loeffler if DNR s backlog wll be
caught up by the end of the year.

MVR. LCEFFLER said with the exception of in-stream flow
applications, the backlog will be caught up in five years.

Nunber 2034

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Loeffler what the average
anpunt of tinme was to process a tenporary water use permt.

MR. LOEFFLER said DNR had nade an effort over the last few years
to process tenporary water use permts so that the permtting is
kept current. If the permt is conplex - as many of the North
Slope permts are - DNR works with the applicant for a couple of
nont hs before he or she applies. The permtting can take from a
few days to a nonth, depending on the conplexity of the issues.
He nmentioned that in extrene cases, DNR can process permts in
two to three days, as long as DNR and the Al aska Departnent of
Fish & Gane (ADF&G are convinced there won't be any significant
i npacts. He summarized that [permtting] is widely variable but
relatively quick. He said DNR had promsed a perfornmance
nmeasure of a typical [permt's being processed] within 20 days
in the future, but that's not too far from what happens now.

Number 1936

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked MR Loeffler what the five-year
backl og is.

MR. LOEFFLER said the backlog is water rights. He clarified
that there is no backlog for tenporary water use permts.

Number 1911

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 22, 2002



CO CHAIR SCALZI asked M. Loeffler how the new regulations that
were adopted | ast year will affect the backl og.

MR. LOEFFLER said DNR didn't adopt new regul ations |ast year,
but it did receive the noney to fund the existing system He
said DNR hired new personnel, which wll help address the
backl og. New regul ations were proposed to help streamine the
system however, those regul ations have not gone into effect.

CO CHAI R SCALZI asked M. Loeffler if DNR had gained anything in
hiring five new personnel.

MR. LOEFFLER said the new personnel had been hired recently. He
said it wasn't until around |ate Decenber that DNR acquired four
out of the five personnel. He said he is convinced that DNR is
in the process of accelerating so it can stay current and
address the backlog; furthernore, this is the transition year to
hire and train people. He indicated that half of those new
personnel wll keep applications current and the others wll
address the backl og. He reiterated that he expects the backl og
to be current in five years.

Nunmber 1869

COCHAIR SCALZI asked M. Loeffler to explain the proposed
regul ati ons and how they will help the process.

MR. LOEFFLER said the proposed regulations were to provide a
stream ined nmethod of processing snmall water rights [w thout]
full adjudication. The current system does not require a
single-famly dwelling or less to apply for a water right. A
well can be drilled; the water right is optional, he explained.
The larger water rights would require full adjudication; DNR

proposed a three-tier system he said. The mddle group [of
wat er-rights applicants] would require an inquiry with ADF&G and
the Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC). If there

were no issues, then the applicant would be given an
aut hori zation to proceed. Public notice would not be required

he said. He nentioned that there are a nunber of comments that
need to be reviewed before DNR can proceed.

Nunmber 1691
CO CHAIR MASEK referred to M. Loeffler's earlier testinony and

pointed out that [Section 2 of the bill], page 2, lines 24-29,
read in part:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 22, 2002



When there are conpeting applications for water from
the sane source, and the source is insufficient to

supply all applicants, the conm ssioner shall give
preference first to public water supply including
donestic water uses, second to agriculture and

irrigation, and third [Then] to the use that alone or
in conbination wth other foreseeable uses wll
constitute the nost beneficial use.

MR. LCEFFLER apol ogi zed for the error. He specified that his
previous testinony that agriculture would be given preference to
t he donestic water supply was incorrect.

Nunber 1597

CO CHAIR MASEK noted that M. Loeffler had testified that there
m ght be abuse of the water rights in regard to the agricultura
user group. She referred to Section 5, subsection (10), which
read:

"significant anobunt of water"” neans the use of one
mllion or nore gallons of water a day for 100
consecutive days in a cal endar year

CO-CHAIR MASEK asked M. Loeffler what the current anount of a
significant anmount of water is.

MR. LOEFFLER said the current definition, in regulation, is 500
gallons day or 5,000 in a single day, or 30,000 of
nonconsunptive use.

CO- CHAIR MASEK nentioned percentage users and the proposed
regul ation that would allow tenporary water use for an applicant
unl ess the comm ssioner takes action to deny it.

MR. LOEFFLER said DNR had not had that situation occur. He
reiterated that DNR has been current on processing tenporary
water use permt applications. He said he didn't believe DNR
had taken several weeks to process applications in situations of
i mredi ate need. He said that would occur in situations
involving a significant issue that needed to be resolved to
ensure that fish and wildlife are protected.

Nunber 1467

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 22, 2002



COCHAIR MASEK asked how the proposed regulations define
significant use and what the difference is between existing
regul ati ons and proposed regul ati ons.

MR. LOEFFLER nentioned the current proposed regulations and

said, "The significant anount of water is ... the anount at
whi ch you have to apply, which is 500 gallons a day or 5,000
[gallons] in a single day." He said DNR keeps that as an

application threshold but puts a second threshold in which,
after a quick review, DNR determnes that it is not a
significant anobunt of water. The regulations give DNR the power
to make that choice: up to 5,000 gallons a day from a
anadromous fish stream or 50,000 from groundwater or a
nonanadr onous fish stream He said DNR would only [raise the
anount of water] after a review by DNR, ADF&G and DEC, if they
chose to reviewit.

Nunber 1364

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked M. Loeffler if Section 2 would
take preference over endangered species.

MR. LOEFFLER said DNR does not adm ni ster the Endangered Species
Act; there is nothing DNR could do that would allow people to
endanger an endangered speci es. He said DNR could give
agriculture preference to anadronous fish under this [bill],
however, if there were not enough water for both.

CO CHAIR MASEK asked M. Loeffler if DNR consults wth ADF&G
during the review process or if [DNR] has to get perm ssion from
ADF&G,

MR. LOEFFLER said the law requires DNR to consult with ADF&G in
all cases; however, it doesn't require ADF&G s concurrence or
the need to wait for ADF&G s perm ssion.

CO-CHAIR MASEK indicated that HB 392 would be held for further
consi derati on.

ADJ OQURNMENT
Nunmber 1163

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:35 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 22, 2002



